
Welcome to tonight’s City Council meeting! 
 

The elected officials of the City of Bonners Ferry appreciate an involved constituency. Testimony from the public 
is encouraged for items listed under the Public Hearing portion of the agenda. Any individual may address the 

council on any issue, whether on the agenda or not, during the Public Comments period. Individuals addressing 
the Mayor and Council during Public Comment should refrain from using that time to address the performance of 
or to make complaints about a specific employee. Public participation during the business portion of the meeting 
will generally not be allowed, with the discretion left to the Mayor and Council. Special accommodation to see, 

hear, or participate in the public meeting should be made at City Hall within two days of the public meeting. 
 

Vision Statement 
Bonners Ferry, “The Friendliest City”, strives to achieve balanced growth, builds on community strengths, 
respects natural resources, promotes excellence in Government, and values quality of life. We are a city that 
welcomes all people. 

AGENDA 
 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Bonners Ferry City Hall 
7232 Main Street 

267-3105 
March 19, 2024 

6:00 pm 
 

Join video Zoom meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/176727634 
Meeting ID: 176727634 
Join by phone: 253-215-8782 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Each speaker will be allowed a maximum of three minutes, unless repeat testimony is requested by the 
Mayor/Council. 
 
REPORTS 
Police/Fire/City Engineer/Administrator/Urban Renewal District/SPOT/Golf/EDC 
 
GUEST 
Todd Bateman with Bateman Benefits regarding a Group Retiree Program 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – {action item} 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
2. Approval of Bills and Payroll 
3. Approve Minutes from 8/29/24 and 11/9/23 Special Council Meeting,02/06/24 and 03/05/24 Regular Council 

Meeting. 
 
 

  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
4. CITY (action item) [attachment]- Discuss and Consider entering into an agreement with Bateman Benefits for 

a Group Retiree Program pending legal review. 
 
5. ELECTRIC (action item) [attachment]- Consider approval for the Mayor to sign the IDL Waterways 

Easement Application for the Moyie Dam. 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/176727634


6. CITY (action item) [attachment]- Consider Resolution #2024-002 Public Participation Guidelines for the City 
of Bonners Ferry. 

 
7. CITY (action Item) [attachment]- Consider authorizing the mayor to sign the lease for an updated postage 

machine. 
 

8. GOLF (action item) [attachment]- Consider approval of expense to have new reels installed for the fairway 
mower. 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT 



Posted at City Hall on __________________ 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

August 29, 2023 
 
 
Mayor Staples called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. Council present were Val Thompson by Zoom, Rick 
Alonzo, Ron Smith. Brion Poston was absent. 
Staff present were City Administrator Lisa Ailport, Clerk/Treasurer Deborah Garcia, City Engineer Mike Klaus 
No public were present. 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
 
1. CITY {Action item} [attachment] Consider approval of minutes from: 06/28/2023 Budget Workshop, 

7/11/2023 Budget Workshop, 7/11/2023 Regular Council Meeting, 7/18/2023 Budget workshop, 7/18/2023 
Regular Council Meeting. 

Ron Smith made a motion to approve the Minutes as read with the corrections being made on the 7/11/23 
minutes. Rick Alonzo seconded the motion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3. POLICE {Action item} [attachment] Consider the approval of the SRO Contract 

Rick Alonzo mentioned that the County will have an SRO as well. The City of Bonners ferry will be at the middle 
school and the high school, and the County will be at the elementary schools. 

 

Val Thompson made a motion to approve the Memorandum of Understanding between the Boundary County 
School District and the City of Bonners Ferry Police Department for the contract for the School Resource 
Officer for the Bonners Ferry High School and the Boundary County Middle School. Rick Alonzo seconded 
the motion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2. Result: Approve 
Moved by: Ron Smith 
Seconded by Rick Alonzo 
Voted Yes Val Thompson, Rick Alonzo, Ron Smith 
Voted No  
Absent Brion Poston 

Result: Approve 
Moved by: Val Thompson 
Seconded by Rick Alonzo 
Voted Yes Val Thompson, Ron Smith, Rick Alonzo 
Voted No  
Absent Brion Poston 



Posted at City Hall on __________________ 

 
4. CITY {Discussion only} FY 2024 City Fee Schedule Workshop  

City Administrator Lisa Ailport went through a Power Point Presentation that she prepared for tonight’s meeting. In 
2020 Council committed to reviewing fees annually in/around the time of budget. Lisa stated that tonight Council 
and Staff will look at each area of fees and suggest some modifications, request feedback, and start a discussion. 
Once Council and Staff are comfortable with the suggested rates, a public hearing will be held to review 
amendments in accordance with Idaho code. Idaho Code requires a public hearing anytime a new fee is 
proposed, or a fee increase exceeds 5%. The public notice shall include the purpose of the fee increase. (I.C. 63-
1311A). Staff recommends holding a public hearing regardless of the amount of the fee increase so that the 
public can have the opportunity to make comments on the changes. Lisa talked about the current fee schedule 
and that there are eight area tables and four utility rate tables. Staff recommends going through each table to 
discuss whether changes are warranted. There will be a specific review of the utility rates in conjunction with the 
adopted budget are warranted. Corrections for missing or mis noted rates should be corrected. 

Lisa went through each table in the fee schedule: 

Table 1- City Hall Licenses and Permit Fees. There are no recommended changes to Table 1 

Table 2- Planning and Zoning-Land Use & Development- Staff will be looking at these fees close over the next 
year. 

Table 3- Building Permit Fees- Under contract with Building and safety right now our plan review is not captured 
correctly in our fee schedule this will need to be added to the fee schedule. Staff also recommend newer ICC 
valuation sheets to align with the cost of building more closely. Since the fee is based on the value of 
construction, using older less accurate data can lead to remodels of existing buildings costing an applicant more 
than new construction.   

Table 4- Utility Application and Connection Fees- There are no recommended changes to Table 4   

Table 5- Mirror Lake Golf Course Fees- There are no recommended changes to Table 5 

Table 6- City Property Fees- Staff suggest a $5.00 increase in swimming lesson fees. 

Table 7- City Equipment Rates- There are no recommended changes to Table 7 

Table 8- City Fire Department- There are no recommended changes to Table 8 

Electric Rates- Staff is suggesting a 5% increase, but the budget is suggesting 7%.  

Water/Sewer Rates- Staff suggesting a 5% increase. Mike Klaus recommends removing the column that says 
unlimited out of the sewer rate table.  

Garbage Rates- Frederickson’s is requesting a 3.5% increase. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Mayor Staples adjourned the meeting at 6:10 pm. 



 SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
November 9, 2023 

5:30 pm 
 
 
Mayor Alonzo called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm. Council present were Ron Smith, Val Thompson, Brion 
Poston, Adam Arthur.  
Staff present were City Administrator Lisa Ailport, City Engineer Mikfe Klaus, Clerk/Treasurer Deborah Garcia, 
City Attorney Andrakay Pluid by Zoom. 
Public present were David Sims, Mike Halford, Lynn Feldman, Emily Bonsant, Gerald Higgs, Adrienne Norris, 
Shane McTaggart, Loretta Hunsaker, Fay Almond. Gregory Lamberty, Karen Davis 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
1. GOLF- (action item) [attachment] Discuss and consider the contract for the new golf course manager. 
 
City Administrator Lisa Ailport informed council that the copy they had in front of them is not the current contract it 
is the master contract. Lisa will go through the bullet points in her memo she has provided to council. Lisa stated 
that council had directed staff to meet with the outgoing golf contractor. The mayor, Lisa and a Council Member 
met with Ralph and from that Lisa bulleted the areas that were thought to be worth discussing. Lisa told council 
that these are staff opinions and Council can take that into consideration and have their own opinion. Lisa stated 
that when they met with the current golf contractor it was to get his comments on the contract that he operated 
under. The following are the comments that the current golf contractor made: 
 
• Base Rate should be increased to attract the attention of PGA Pros. It was also his opinion that 
the base rate wasn’t enough to pay his employees adequate wages. Although, he did have 
employees who accepted the positions for $10-$15 per hour. 
Councilman Poston said the pay was $10-$11 per hour and would like that corrected. 
 
• He believed the section relating to the Driving Range (III B5) should be reworked. It was his 
opinion that the city should allow the contractor to use city owned equipment to maintain the 
driving range but did not offer any suggested cost sharing or revenue sharing. Based on his 
recollection he was receiving around $8-9,000 per year in revenue, but his costs ate up any 
“profit” for him. I asked him if he had submitted his P/L statements for 21-23 and he didn’t 
remember. 
• Under section III C7, relating to the responsibility for the electric costs being borne by the 
contractor, he felt wouldn’t be liked by applicants. However, he acknowledged that during the 
last 4 years it has been fine for him. 
• Under section V. A, He questioned whether taxes were included with the contractor’s payment. 
Staff has confirmed that the net revenue that is shared is after sales tax is removed from the total. 
Each week the golf contractor submits their report of sales and sales tax to be paid and also their 
commission to be received. 
• The next comments were specific comments in the contract that pertained to him or his wife’s 
behavior. Those sections are removed for discussion purposes and staff does not expect those to 
continue in the future contract, unless the attorney finds it necessary (ex. Section VII. 6.) 
• Lastly, it was the Contractor’s opinion that section XIII was new, and he felt it was a red flag for 
any professional taking over the course. 
 
Lisa informed council that staff responded to the contractor’s opinion on the golf contract and offers the following 
for consideration by council: 
 



First, relating to the base rate. It is the opinion of Staff that if Council were to consider increasing the 
base rate that they do so cautiously. The current contract is set up to incentivize the contractor to bring in more 
rounds of golf with the 80/20 split of proceeds. By raising the base rate and adjusting the split 
(100/0 or 90/10), the result may not change provided the play remains the same. However, if an increase 
to the base rate occurs and no adjustments are made to the split, the city could end up losing all its 
revenue used to reinvest back into the course. 
Staff has provided the Council with a 23-year P/L report with capital investments made. If each year 
there was a high level of surplus (after capital spending and saving), then it might be wise to adjust the 
base rate to attract more interest in the position. 
However, if you review the P/L statement, you’ll note that over the 22-year period (excluding last season) 
the total profit from the course is roughly $167,000 ($7,500 per year). Over that same period there were 
six (6) years where the course ran at a loss, six (6) additional years that expenses were 90% or greater of 
revenue and eight (8) of those years’ expenses ran between 82% and 89% of revenues. Of that same time 
frame, only four (4) years had revenues less than 80% of expenses. 
This means that if the Council were to increase the base rate and keep the same profit sharing, expenses 
would most certainly go up and the city could find it much more difficult to support the golf course on 
only the revenues it makes, much less make any capital investments. This would likely lead to the 
taxpayers supporting the golf course with property tax dollars. 
In the end, the only way the city can pay more to a golf contractor is to either increase the revenues by 
increasing the costs of play, or by increasing play. 
Next the existing contractor felt that the driving range section should be reworked. It was his opinion that 
limiting use of the city owned equipment on the course was a big red flag to future professional looking to 
operate the course. 
It was the opinion of the former Mayor that subsidizing the profit of an independent contractor was not in 
the interest of the city. If the city were to allow the Contractor to use city equipment on a 
portion of the course that it was not receiving any value back in the form or rent or revenue share, meant 
that the residents were subsidizing the bottom line of the contractor. According to the Golf Contractor, he 
receives roughly $8-9,000 each year on the driving range and his contention that there is no business 
market that supports purchasing a piece of equipment to maintain that portion of the course, given the 
profit margin that is made off the range. However, with the range, the Golf Contractor can sell time on 
the range as well as offering lessons. It is Staff’s opinion that undoubtedly, the range does offer a Contractor 
a fuller experience on a course, than it would be to not have it. 
The current Golf Contractor has extended the bounds of play as a means to address this issue and he still 
uses/used city equipment to maintain the new course boundaries. 
The optics of subsidizing a private businesses profit or bottom line needs to be equalized with the public’s 
interest. While staff has no real great suggestions here, wherever Council lands on this issue to be to 
address both the functional use of the range with the Contractor’s business model/plan and the public’s 
interest. Returning to a profit-sharing model may be the best solution to achieve the best end result, 
however, there may be other suggestions amongst the council members that are worth considering Next of the 
bulleted points made, is the requirement that the Golf Contractor pay the electric bill for the 
club house. 
I can say with absolute confidence that this requirement should stay with the future Golf Contractor. 
There were years where staff would inspect the closure of the club house in late fall or early winter and 
would find the Golf Contractor had left lights on in the building, his personal food and beverages plugged 
in and kept out there and/or his personal carts plugged in. The electric bill was extremely high for the 
winter months with no activity occurring and it became apparent that the because the city was paying the 
electricity for the building that the Contractor was using that for storing his personal/business belongings. 
Since the burden has shifted back to the Contractor, the savings to the public has occurred. 
It is staff recommendation that this section of the contract remain as written. 
Jumping to the last bullet point regarding section VIII, Breach of Contract terms. The Golf Contractor 
felt this section was also a big red flag to future professionals. It was also the Golf Contractor’s opinion 



that this section was new, from the previous contract. However, after review of the 2014 contract, the 
section is referenced as Section XI, not VIII. 
After discussions with the Attorney, it does not appear that this section should be removed and will 
likely stay as part of the future contract.  
Council reviewed and discussed adjustments and additions to the master contract. Idaho Code Section 18-1359 (3) 
states- (3)  No person related to a mayor or member of a city council by 
blood or marriage within the second degree shall be appointed to any 
clerkship, office, position, employment or duty with the mayor’s or city 
council’s city when the salary, wages, pay or compensation of such 
appointee or employee is to be paid out of public funds. 
 
 
Lisa will make adjustments to the contract and will work with the City Attorney to make sure the language is 
correct. 
  
 
Val Thompson made the motion to direct staff to put together the contract as amended during this meeting. Brion 
Poston seconded the motion. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
2. GOLF- (action item) [attachment] Discuss and consider process for selecting the next golf course manager 

for Mirror Lake Golf Course. 
 

City Administrator Lisa Ailport spoke about how last time this was discussed and tabled how council would like to 
go forward with the selection process. Lisa provided a copy in the packet of the Mirror Lake Golf Course Golf & 
Operations Manager job description and job announcement. After some discussion that Lisa had with council 
members individually as well as the mayor, suggesting removing some language involving the golf contractor and 
that has been done. This took out the references to the requirement of the need to have a golf pro associated with 
the job. Lisa also mentioned that usually the contract is for four years, but she has included it to be five years and 
that will need to be reflected in the contract. Lisa asked the mayor and council if they would like to hear her 
recommendations, Mayor Alonzo said that they would like to hear her recommendations. It is Lisa’s 
recommendation to have it kept executive level meaning that it’s under the mayor’s provision to put together that 
committee no differently than we do for our hirings for any other positions at the city and that be his choice of 
whom he wants to put on that committee. 
 
Adam Made a motion to recommend selecting the next golf contract be an executive committee set forth by the 
Mayor. Val Thompson seconded the motion. 

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Val Thompson 
Seconded by Brion Poston 
Voted Yes Ron Smith, Adam Arthur, Val Thompson, 

Brion Poston 
Voted No  
Absent  

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Adam Arthur 
Seconded by Val Thompson 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT  

Mayor Alonzo adjourned the meeting at 6:51 pm. 
 

 

Voted Yes Brian Poston, Val Thompson, Adam Arthur, 
Ron Smith 

Voted No  
Absent  



Minutes  
February 6, 2024 

6:00 pm 
 
 

Mayor Alonzo called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. Council present were Val Thompson, Brion Poston, Ron 
Smith, and Adam Arthur.  
Staff present were City Attorney Andrakay Pluid by Zoom, Police Chief Brian Zimmerman, Clerk/Treasurer 
Deborah Garcia. 
 
Public present were Jessica Tingley, Gerald Higgs, David Sims, David Clark, Levi Falck, Fay Almond, Carolyn 
Birrell, Denise Crichton, Emily Bonsant, Joe Knight. 
 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Gerald Higgs- Spoke about the sight line at the intersection of Highway 95 and El Paso the north end. 
 
David Clark- Spoke about the Local Option Tax. 
 
Levi Falck- Spoke about his business Cabinet Motors and his permits. 
 
Carolyn Birrell- Praised the Ambulance, Police Department, and the Hospital for the way they handled a 911 call 
for her husband. 
 
 
 
REPORTS 
 
Police- No report 
 
Fire- No report  
 
City Administrator- No report 
 
City Engineer- No report 
 
Urban Renewal District- No report 
 
SPOT- Ron Smith reported that they have changed the schedule a little. The Spot bus does not go to Sandpoint 
on Tuesdays anymore, that service is here as well as Wednesday and Friday. Thursday the bus goes to 
Sandpoint. Ron said that they haven’t met for different reasons and so he was unsure how that was going. Ron 
will have more information after the next meeting.  
 
Golf- No report 
 
EDC- David mentioned that he talked at the last meeting about the USDA grant for banners on the highway. After 
speaking with Mayor Alonzo, they have decided to wait until next year as current audited financials are required. 
This is an annual program. 
 Idaho has $583,000,000.00 to spend on the Bead Broadband Grant and so they are looking at data in all the 
counties where the underserved and unserved locations are. David said that after looking at the map, he has 
found a lot of errors in Boundary County and has been working with the GIS people of the state of Idaho and they 
are seeing similar issues across the state. The impact of those points. It also dictates how much those folks will 
get. In looking at the past grant awards its about $3,000.00 to $6,000.00 per location.  



David is working the USDA Value Added Producer Grants and is working with two local applicants for grants this 
year. 
Moyie Springs Sewer Project will start construction this spring, probably at the end of March. This project will not 
be completed until early summer of 2025. 
David also reported that the bridge at the end of the deep Creek Loop is now a county bridge. It has been having 
some significant issues as some log trucks have hit it. ITD said it will be speed rated, load rated and then 
eventually closed. The bridge is a 500ft. span. The issue is that it is so expensive and the last estimate the county 
got that was several years ago was $20,000,000.00 to $25,000,000.00 to replace and even the match to replace 
that is out of the county’s reach. David said there is a Federal Bridge Investment Planning Grant that the county 
has decided to apply for. This will help them figure out what options are available, either replacing the bridge in 
the current location, a different location, maybe doing an interchange up Mountain Meadows. That will go in the 
middle of February. The Local Highway Technical Assistance Council will be helping with that application as well 
as an ex-ITD Planner. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – {action item} 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
2. Approval of Bills and Payroll 
3. Approval of minutes from 12/19/23, and 01/16/24 regular meeting. 
 
Adam Arthur made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Ron Smith seconded the motion. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
4. CITY- Discuss scheduling a Joint Council Meeting with City of Moyie Springs, and Boundary County 

Commissioners. 
  

This will be the City of Bonners Ferry’s turn to host. We are hoping to use the Annex building. Deby has been in 
contact with Michelle at the commissioners’ office and Donna from Moyie and they are checking their schedules 
to see what will work. Moyie has a council meeting tomorrow and will be deciding what will work for them. March 
27, 2024, at 6:00 pm is what day and time we are looking at if the Annex is available. Deby will check with 
Michelle and Donna tomorrow. 
 
 
INFORMATION 

$1,000.00 Donation from a fundraiser at Northwoods Tavern and Grill for the Flag Fund. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Alonzo adjourned the meeting at 6:25 pm. 

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Adam Arthur 
Seconded by Ron Smith 
Voted Yes Brion Poston, Val Thompson, Adam Arthur, 

Ron Smith 
Voted No  
Absent  



MINUTES 
March 5, 2024 

 
 
 

Mayor Alonzo called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. Council present were Ron Smith, Val Thompson, Adam 
Arthur, and Brion Poston. 
Staff present were City Engineer/Administrator Mike Klaus, City Attorney Andrakay Pluid via Zoom, Police Chief 
Willie Cowell, Clerk/Treasurer Deborah Garcia 
Public present were Jessica Tingley, David Clark, Emily Bonsant, David Sims, Adrienne Norris, Will Stafford, 
Laura Carmean Stafford, John Birrell, Carolyn Birrell, Joe Knight, Fay Almond. 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Mayor Alonzo- congratulated the High School Basketball team for winning State. 
 
Will Stafford- Spoke about a tree issue that is in the City Right of Way. 
  
Adrienne Norris- Spoke about a statement in the agenda regarding public comments. 
 
 
 
REPORTS 
Police- No report 
 
Fire- No report. 
 
City Engineer/Administrator –No Report 
 
Urban Renewal District- No Report 
 
SPOT- No Report 
 
Golf- No report. 
 
EDC- David wanted to talk about Planning and Zoning. A couple of building owners who want to develop 
apartments on the upper floors. The current parking Ordinance that the city has in the downtown district. None of 
the commercial uses have parking requirements except the apartments. This makes it difficult to develop 
apartments. The Kelson building and one other building have apartments and do not have those requirements. 
David believes Planning and Zoning will be looking at that. 
 
Another Planning and Zoning issue that has come up is that the Bonners Ferry Ordinance doesn’t specifically say 
you can have more than one building on a commercial parcel. Historically Bonners Ferry has allowed that if you 
look at a lot of the businesses on the South Hill there are multiple businesses on one parcel. Almost all the multi-
family fall into that category such as the Bonners Ferry Apartments, Senior Apartments, and Jenni Lane. Now the 
interpretation is the Ordinance doesn’t specifically call that out. They are not allowing that, where this has come 
up is people looking to develop multi-family housing such as town houses on one parcel and that is no longer 
allowed. David has talked to Clare and their plan is to take that up at some point in the near future, but that does 
essentially stop multi-family development right now. 
Davis reported that other downtown news and hopes everyone has been to the yogurt shop. There is a donut 
shop that will be opening soon in about two weeks, there is a hair salon that is going to be opening soon 
downtown and the old Safeway building has been purchased by the County. David said that he thinks you will see 
downtown change for the better soon. 
 
 



CONSENT AGENDA – {action item} 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
2. Approval of Bills and Payroll 
3. Approve Minutes from 02/20/24 Regular Council Meeting and 02/22/24 Special Council Meeting. 
4. Consider approving the contract period extension with HDR Relicensing to 12/31/24. 
5. Consider authorizing the mayor to sign a cover letter for CDBG addendum. 
 
 
Adam Arthur made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Ron Smith seconded the motion. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
6. URA-(action item) [attachment]- Consider Annual Report from the Urban Renewal Agency pursuant to Idaho 

Code 50-2006(c).   
 

Annually Urban Renewal provides this report to the city and is required by the Idaho Code and is also submitted 
to the State as well. Urban Renewal also has to hold a public meeting to take comments on it and that will happen 
in April. Mike put the report together that mostly came out of the audit. David said it is not clear from the report, 
but most of the income goes to paying off debt. Urban Renewal’s expenses have exceeded their income for the 
past three years due to the shift from commercial valuations to residential. We are expecting a higher tax 
increment this year.  
 
Val Thompson made a motion to accept the annual report from the Urban Renewal Agency pursuant to Idaho 
Code 50-2006(c). Brion Poston seconded the motion. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7. SEWER (action Item) [attachment]- Consider approval of recommended grant administration firm for lift 

station 5 ICDBG grant administration. 
 
Mike said that the city put in an application with the Idaho Commerce Community Development Block Grant to 
rebuild a lift station that is estimated to be about $1,200,000.00. The grant application is for $500,000.00 our cash 
portion would be about $725,000.00. There was an addendum that had to go out and what we need to do at this 

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Adam Arthur 
Seconded by Ron Smith 
Voted Yes Brion Poston, Val Thompson, Adam Arthur, 

Ron Smith  
Voted No  
Absent  

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Val Thompson 
Seconded by Brion Poston  
Voted Yes Ron Smith, Adam Arthur, Val Thompson, 

Brion Poston 
Voted No  
Absent  



point is to select the grant administration from this point forward. In that process we solicited three firms to provide 
the proposals and only received one. Mike said the choice was easy, but the scoring needed to be done and then 
we had to summarize it. Mike read the memo that was provided to council: 
 

In February 2024, the City requested proposals from three grant administration firms 
for work related to the grant administration services for Lift Station #5. On February 
23, 2024, a selection committee that consisted of Mayor Alonzo, Clerk Garcia, and me, 
reviewed the only proposal received by Panhandle Area Council (PAC). Below is a 
summary of the discussion points and comments of the selection committee: 

- Only one firm submitted a proposal- PAC. 
- The committee discussed the single proposal received and recognized 

that PAC was highly qualified in all the rated categories that included, 
capability, relevant project experience, team qualifications, and project 
approach and schedule. 

- The committee felt that there were no reasons to go to interviews, since 
there was one qualified candidate, and we had significant successful 
experience with that candidate. 

- It was discussed that PAC was successful in helping the City procure a 
grant for the sewer bridge project a few years ago, and performed all of 
the administrative functions very well. 

- Following are some of the specific comments from the committee: 
o “Great organization to deal with!” 
o “Great, effective team with amazing results” 
o “Nice staff, always a positive interaction with knowledgeable people” 

The selection committee recommends to City Council that it select Panhandle Area 
Council as the grant administrator for the City’s Lift Station #5 project. 

 
Ron Smith made a motion to select Panhandle area Council as the grant administrator for the city’s lift station #5 
project. Adam Arthur seconded the motion. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Alonzo adjourned the meeting at 6:18 pm. 

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Ron Smith 
Seconded by Adam Arthur 
Voted Yes Brion Poston, Val Thompson, Adam Arthur, 

Ron Smith 
Voted No  
Absent  



Navigable Waterways Easement Application and Instructions         SLE-001  
Page 1 of 4                                                                                                                          Rev. October 2023 

IDAHO DEPARTMENT OF LANDS 
NAVIGABLE WATERWAYS EASEMENT APPLICATION and INSTRUCTIONS 

(Not for use on Endowment Lands) 

 
Navigable Waterways Easement applications must be completed and submitted to the appropriate Idaho 
Department of Lands (IDL) Supervisory Area Office. Incomplete applications and those requiring further 
information may take longer to process.  
 
APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Application must include the exact name(s) and address(s) to appear on the navigable waterways easement. 
Provide the full legal name of the Applicant or the entity name on file with the Idaho Secretary of State. 

Applicant Name: Authorized Representative (if applicable) 

Street Address Mailing Address (if different from Street Address) 

Email Address(es) Phone:  

Website Address(es) Cell/Mobile: 

 
LOCATION OF PROPOSED USE 

Township Range Section 
Description 

(to the quarter-quarter or Government Lot, if 
applicable) 

County Water Body Acres 

       

       

(IDL Fund for Navigable Waterways is ND) 

 
PROPOSED USE (list specific purpose, associated activities, and time frame(s); attach additional pages if 
necessary) 
 
 

  



Navigable Waterways Easement Application and Instructions         SLE-001  
Page 2 of 4                                                                                                                          Rev. October 2023 

WHEN REQUIRED 

Uses above, across, over, in, through, upon, and under the beds of state-owned navigable waterways may 
require a navigable waterways easement. Exceptions include those uses that are typically covered by leases, 
through a short duration permit, or involve small water delivery structures that draw less than five (5) cubic feet 
per second of water. 

Uses that require a navigable waterways easement are dams, bridges, road fills, power lines, fiber optic 
cables, pipelines, boat ramps, and other infrastructure that is essentially permanent. 

Navigable waterways easement rules- https://adminrules.idaho.gov/rules/current/20/200309.pdf 

PROCEDURE 

The procedure for acquiring a navigable waterways easement across state-owned navigable waterways is as 
follows: 

1. Contact the appropriate IDL Supervisory Area Office to discuss the need and location of the 
proposed use. If the Supervisory Area Office determines that a navigable waterways easement is 
needed for the proposed use, the applicant may complete the application form and send in the $500 
application fee with the information required under item 3. 
 

2. Checks for the $500 application fee should be made out to IDAHO DEPARTMENT OF LANDS. 
Supplemental compensation may be required at a later date for dams and for uses that substitute 
state-owned navigable waterways over the adjacent uplands. See item 6 below. 

 
3. Submit a letter of request stating the purpose of the navigable waterways easement with a Record 

of Survey showing the easement and a written description of the centerline or metes and bounds 
survey of the easement. The entry and exit points of the use in and out of the state-owned 
navigable waterway should each be tied to at least one legal corner. A digital copy of each of the 
following will speed the processing of the application: 
• The legal description as an MS Word file 
• A .pdf of the legal description signed and stamped by a Licensed Surveyor 
• Record of survey or exhibit as a .pdf 
• ESRI shapefiles of the easement (see CAD Drawing Standards for GIS Submittals) 

(Note: Other methods may be considered after consultation with IDL staff for guidance.) 

4. Term easements for hydroelectric facilities are typically coordinated with the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC) license renewal. 
 

5. General Liability Insurance may be required to protect the Grantee and the state from liabilities 
incurred through the use of state property. If required, proof of insurance must be submitted before 
the final documents are issued. The State of Idaho and Idaho Department of Lands must be listed 
as additional insured in the certificate of insurance. 

 
6. Supplemental compensation, when required, will be due upon signature by the Applicant. 

 
a. Navigable waterways easements for all hydroelectric dams and any dam in excess of ten 

(10) feet in height require supplemental compensation of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) 
plus five dollars ($5.00) per megawatt of the nameplate rating for hydroelectric dams. 

b. Navigable waterways easements for uses that substitute state-owned navigable waters over 
the use of uplands will require supplemental compensation based on the market value of the 
adjacent uplands. 

  

https://adminrules.idaho.gov/rules/current/20/200309.pdf


Navigable Waterways Easement Application and Instructions         SLE-001  
Page 3 of 4                                                                                                                          Rev. October 2023 

NOTE: 

This is not to be considered a complete summary of all the information IDL may require. Additional information 
may be required as needed on a case-by-case basis. Costs for supporting documents are the responsibility of 
the applicant. IDL staff will request supporting documentation when they deem it necessary. 

I HEREBY REQUEST A NAVIGABLE WATERWAYS EASEMENT FROM THE STATE OF IDAHO AND 
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I UNDERSTAND MY OBLIGATIONS DESCRIBED HEREIN. 

 

APPLICANT(S) SIGNATURE:        DATE:     

            DATE:     

 
 

*** Idaho Department of Lands Administrative Use Only *** 
 

RECEIVED BY:         DATE:      

☐ $500 Fee Submitted with Application   

☐ APPROVED or ☐ REJECTED BY AREA:        DATE:   
   

☐Processing note: Upon complete application acceptance, the Area will drop Easement Application and 
“Attachment A” form into Lands and Waterways Processing Center (LWPC) Document Exchange via the 
LWPC In-Box into appropriate folder to obtain navigable waterways easement number. 

Navigable Waterways Easement Number:      

Prior Land Board approval required? >$25K or unusual/complex? ☐ Yes ☐ No 

Approval Checklist 
1)               
Land Records Staff Name (approval of legal description and exhibit map)   Date approved 
 
2)                
Area Navigable Waterways Resource Specialist or Area Manager    Date approved 
 
3)               
Navigable Waterways Program Manager/RPA Bureau Chief    Date approved 
 

Approvals must be obtained prior to obtaining applicant and Land Board signatures 



Navigable Waterways Easement Application and Instructions         SLE-001  
Page 4 of 4                                                                                                                          Rev. October 2023 

 

 



   
 

CITY OF BONNERS FERRY RESOLUTION NO.  2024-002 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GUIDELINES 

A RESOLUTION TO SET FORTH GUIDELINES FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN 

CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS AND HEARINGS. 

WHEREAS, the City of Bonners Ferry, Idaho holds twice monthly city council meetings and 

occasional public hearings which are open to the general public. These meetings are for the primary 

purpose of dealing with the business of the City,  

WHEREAS, the City of Bonners Ferry City Council values public input and participation in council 

meetings and public hearings. As such, the City Council provides the opportunity on each regular 

council meeting agenda for “Public Comment.” Public comment periods are not required by Idaho 

statute or law at regular council meetings as these meetings are limited public forums, 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to establish clear guidelines for public participation to aid in 

the orderly flow of council meetings and to assist in timely and organized disposition of the business 

of the City,    

WHEREAS, public hearings have additional allowances for public participation based in Idaho Code 

in order to preserve the right of public participation and comment,  

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Mayor and the Council of the City of Bonners Ferry, 

Idaho, as follows: 

1: That the City of Bonners Ferry hereby approves and adopts the attached Public Participation 

Guidelines and hereby incorporates it by reference in to this resolution.  

2:  The guidelines will be made available to the public at council meetings and public hearings. 

 
This Resolution is hereby ADOPTED and made EFFECTIVE by the City of Bonners Ferry this 

______ day of _________________, 2024.  

      CITY OF BONNERS FERRY, IDAHO 

      BY:         
               Rick Alonzo, Bonners Ferry Mayor 
Attest: 
        ____________________ 
Deborah Garcia, Clerk, City of Bonners Ferry  Date 



PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GUIDELINES 
  

Welcome to the Bonners Ferry City Council Meeting. 
  
Regularly scheduled City Council meetings are open to the general public. City Council meetings are 
also available on Zoom. Please be aware that the meeting agenda could differ from the published 
version if amendments to the agenda are made by the Council during the meeting. 
  
The Council encourages public input. While a general public comment option is not required by 
Idaho law, the Bonners Ferry City Council welcomes general public input as part of regular City 
Council meetings. Citizens are also always welcome to contact council members via e-mail or 
through the comment section provided on the City website. The Council is committed to an 
atmosphere that promotes equal opportunity to be heard, civility, mutual respect, proper decorum 
and freedom from discrimination or harassment. The Council will generally not answer questions or 
engage in a dialogue with commenters, but may follow up on comments at a later date or future 
agenda.  
  
Those who wish to address City Council during the council meetings are encouraged to adhere to the 
guidelines below. 
  
Public Comment Guidelines: 
 
Speakers are encouraged to: 

• State their name and city of residence. 
• Focus comments on matters within the purview of the City Council. 
• Limit comments to three (3) minutes or less. 
• Those who wish to speak should sign up on the sheet provided by the Clerk. 
• Practice civility and courtesy. 
• City leaders have the right and the responsibility to maintain order and decorum during the 

meeting. 
• Time may be curtailed for those speakers whose comments are disruptive in nature. 
• Refrain from comments on issues involving matters currently pending before the City’s 

Planning and Zoning Commission or other matters that require legal due process, including 
public hearings, City enforcement actions, and pending City personnel disciplinary matters. 

• Comments that pertain to activities or performance of individual City employees should be 
shared directly with the employee’s supervisor or with the Mayor and should not be the 
subject of public comment. 

  
Public Hearing Guidelines: 
 
In-person Comment. Because public hearings must follow various procedures required by law, 
please wait to offer your comments until comment is invited/indicated. Please address comments 
directly to the Council and try to limit them to three (3) minutes. 
 
Written Comment. The public may provide written comments via postal mail sent to City Hall or via 
email sent to the City Clerk at dgarcia@bonnersferryid.gov.  Comments will be distributed to the 
members of the Council and become a part of the official public hearing record. Written testimony 
must be received no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date of the hearing to ensure 
inclusion in the permanent City record. 
 
Remote Comment. When available, the public may provide live testimony remotely via the Zoom 
meeting platform using a phone or a computer. Those desiring public hearing access may find the 

mailto:dgarcia@bonnersferryid.gov


Zoom information on the agenda for the hearing or by contacting the Clerk’s Office no later than 
twenty-four (24) hours prior to the date of the hearing so log-in information can be sent prior to the 
meeting. Please indicate which public hearing the testimony is intended for on the agenda.  
  
If communication aids, services, or other physical accommodations are needed to facilitate 
participation or access for this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (208) 267-3105 not less than 
48 hours prior to the meeting. The City will help accommodate special needs wherever possible. 

 

 











MEMO 
CITY OF BONNERS FERRY 

CITY ENGINEER 
 

TO:    Mayor and City Council   

FROM:   Mike Klaus, City Engineer/Administrator 

DATE: 3/15/2024 

RE:    Golf Course – Reel Replacement for Fairway Mower 

 

The golf course fairway mower needs to have the cutting reels replaced.  The new reels have 
already been purchased but need to be installed.  It turns out that the process of installing the 
reels is quite involved and takes about two days for two people.  In consultation with the golf 
course manager and the City mechanic, it is recommended to have an outside party install the 
reels.   

The golf course manager has received a quote to complete the work for approximately $1,800.  
Based on that verbal quote, I recommend that the Council approve up to $2,000 to complete the 
reel installation for the fairway mower. 

Please contact me if you have any questions regarding this proposed expense. 

 

Mike  

 

 


	1.0_3-14-24 Regular Council Agenda
	3.0_8-29-23 minutes special council meeting
	3.1_11-9-23 Minutes
	3.2_2-6-24 Council Minutes
	3.3_3-5-24 Regular Council Minutes
	4.0 IDL EasementApp-BonnersFerry-MoyieDam-20240305
	5.0_Resolution 2024-002 for Public Participation
	6.0_Quadient Leasing
	7.0_Golf Course Fairway Reels (3-15-2024)

	Applicant Name: City of Bonners Ferry, Idaho
	Authorized Representative if applicable: Mike Kaus
City Engnineer
	Street Address: 7232 Main Street, # 149
Bonners Ferry, ID 83805
	Mailing Address if different from Street Address: same
	Email Addresses: mklaus@bonnersferry.id.gov
	Phone: 208-267-3105
	Website Addresses: www.bonnersferry.id.gov
	CellMobile: 208-946-9488
	TownshipRow1: 62N
	RangeRow1: 02E
	SectionRow1: 11
	Description to the quarterquarter or Government Lot if applicableRow1: SWSW
	CountyRow1: Boundary
	Water BodyRow1: Moyie River
	AcresRow1: 
	TownshipRow2: 
	RangeRow2: 
	SectionRow2: 
	Description to the quarterquarter or Government Lot if applicableRow2: 
	CountyRow2: 
	Water BodyRow2: 
	AcresRow2: 
	Proposed Use: Operation and maintenance of a 4 (approx.) megawatt hydroelectric dam. The dam is owned, operated, and maintained by the City of Bonners Ferry, Idaho. The dam provides electricity to the residents of Bonners Ferry.
	DATE: 
	DATE_2: 
	RECEIVED BY: 
	DATE_3: 
	500 Fee Submitted with Application: Off
	APPROVED or: Off
	REJECTED BY AREA: Off
	undefined: 
	DATE_4: 
	Processing note Upon complete application acceptance the Area will drop Easement Application and: Off
	Navigable Waterways Easement Number: 
	Prior Land Board approval required 25K or unusualcomplex: Off
	1: 
	Date approved: 
	2: 
	Date approved_2: 
	3: 
	Date approved_3: 


